LETTER OPI NI ON
93-L-187

June 16, 1993

M. Vernon W Goodin
Executive Director
Nort h Dakota Counci l

on the Arts
Bl ack Buil ding, Suite 606
118 Br oadway
Fargo, ND 58102

Dear M. Goodi n:

Thank you for your May 20, 1993, letter concerning the
use of inconme fromthe North Dakota Cul tural Endowrent
Fund (Endowmrent Fund) by the North Dakota Council on
the Arts (Council) to purchase certain services from
an arts support organization.

The Endowrent Fund was established by the 1979
Legislative Assenbly to pronote the arts. North
Dakota Century Code (N.D.C.C.) ? 54-54-08.1; 1979 N.D.
Sess. Laws ch. 578, ? 1. The Endownent Fund may be
characterized as a state special fund with interest
accruing to the Fund itself. See Letter from Attorney
CGeneral N cholas J. Spaeth to Robert E. Hanson ( My
31, 1990) (copy attached).

The Council is authorized to expend only the interest
incone as it directs and pursuant to a biennial
appropriation. NND.C.C. ? 54-54-08.2; Letter from
Attorney GCeneral Nicholas J. Spaeth to S. F. Hoffner
(May 23, 1988) (copy attached). The Endowrent Fund
income was appropriated "for the furthering of the
cultural arts in the state" for the current biennium
by the 1991 Legislature. 1991 N.D. Sess. Laws ch. 14.

A simlar direction was made by the 1993 Legislature
for the next biennium S. Bill No. 2012, 53rd ND Leg.
(1993).

You advise that the Council wants to contract with an
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or gani zati on to, anong ot her t hi ngs, pur chase
fundrai sing for the Endownment Fund. The Council also
wants to contract with the organization to purchase
advocacy services which anount to |obbying of elected
of fi cehol ders at the national, state, and |ocal |evels
regarding public arts policy and funding. You
specifically ask whether the Council may use Endowrent
Fund income to purchase fundraising and advocacy
servi ces.

The expenditure of Endowrent Fund income is left to
the direction of the Council subject only to the
Legi sl ature's direction that it be used "for
furthering of the cultural arts in the state.”
N.D.C.C. ? 54-54-08.2; 1991 N.D. Sess. Laws ch. 14; S.
Bill No. 2012, 53rd ND Leg. (1993). To further the
arts neans to pronote or advance the arts. Webster's

New Col |l egiate Dictionary (1979).

In ny opinion, wuse of Endowrent Fund inconme for
fundrai sing and advocacy services is a perm ssible use
of the incone.

The Council is specifically authorized "to make and
sign any agreenents; and to do and perform any acts
that may be necessary to carry out the purposes of
[NND.C.C. <ch. 54-54 which <created the Council]."
N. D. C.C. ? 54-54-06.

It is a duty of the Council to stimulate and encourage
the presentation of the performng and fine arts and
th

e partici pation and public I nt erest t herein.
N.D.C.C. ? 54-54-05(1). The Council is required to
recommend ways "to encourage participation in and
appreciation of the arts." N.D.C.C. ? 54-54-05(2).
"To expand the state's cultural resources"” is also a
duty of the Council. N D.C.C. ? 54-54-05(3).

A purpose of the Endowent Fund is to make arts
prograns approved by the Council "nore available to

the state's citizens." ND. C.C ? 54-54-08.1(1), (2).

A program of fundraising and | obbying to enhance the
financial status of the Endowrent Fund and Council is
consistent with the purposes of the Council and the
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Endowrent  Fund. An increase in funding for the
Endowrent Fund and Council is bound to facilitate the
presentation and participation in arts prograns.
Addi ti onal Endowrent Fund income wll help further
arts progranms and neke them "nore available to the
state's citizens." N.D.C.C. ?? 54-54-05(1); b54-54-
08.1(2).

Fundrai sing and |obbying activities on behalf of the
Council are also consistent with the expressed policy
of the state "to ensure that the role of the arts in

the life of our communities will continue to grow and
will play an evernore significant part in the welfare
and educati onal experience  of [ North Dakot a' s]

citizens." N.D.C.C. ? 54-54-01.

You also ask whether it s appropriate in the
contenpl ated service contract to condition rel ease of
federal funds for arts projects wupon conpletion of

fundrai sing and | obbying activities. In my opinion,
such a provision is not appropriate and | do not
recommend it.

The Council is authorized to receive and disburse
f eder al funds. N. D. C. C. ? 54-54-07. Feder a
assistance to states my be used solely for arts
projects and productions which do not I nvol ve

fundraising or | obbying. 20 U.S.C.S. ? 954(9)(2)(B)
(1992). Federal regulations specifically prohibit and
penalize the use of federal funds for |obbying at the
federal level with respect to the receipt of federal
funds. 45 C.F.R pt. 1158.

Tying release of federal funds for arts projects
entitled to federal support to conpletion of
activities not meeti ng f eder al st andar ds for
assi stance may jeopardize federal funding. Wi | e not
a technical violation of federal |aw and regul ations,
such a provision is not in tune with the tenor of the
federal |aw and regul ations.

I have otherwi se reviewed the proposed contract for
services and the related conpliance and matchi ng grant
agreenent. In my opinion, they are in legally
sufficient form

Si ncerely,
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Hei di Hei t kanmp
ATTORNEY GENERAL

tam krb
Encl osur es
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M. Vernon W Goodin
Executive Director
Nort h Dakota Counci

on the Arts
Bl ack Buil ding, Suite 606
118 Br oadway
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Fargo, ND 58102



